
 
 

    City of Albuquerque 
 

Addendum # 1 
 

 
Solicitation Number:  RFP2007-017-TC 

 
 

RFP Title: “Conservation Oversight Management” 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                     
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Revised Due Date: May 11, 2007 NLT 4:00 p.m. (MST) 
(The time and date of closing shall be strictly observed) 

 
 
 
 

               City of Albuquerque 
           Department of Finance and Administrative Services 

             Purchasing Division 
        April 25, 2007 

 
The purpose of this first addendum is to notify all potential respondents of the following 
changes and additions. 
 
 



1. Part 1.2, on page 4, should read as follows: 
 
Proposal Due Date:   Friday, May 11, 2007 – NLT 4:00 p.m. (Local Time) 
The time and date proposals are due shall be strictly observed.  

      
2. Questions and Answers 

 
      The questions asked and their answers are attached.  
 
 
Please incorporate the change in this Addendum in the original RFP document.  
Sign and return this Addendum with your RFP response. 
************************************************************************** 
Acknowledged & Returned:  

 

 

____________________________________  _____________________________ 
Signature Printed Name   Title                                   Company 
 
 
 
 
                                              
XC: John Castillo, Director 

John J. Vigil, Purchasing Manager 
 City Clerk 
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RFP2007-017-TC 
Addendum 1 

 
On April 4, 2007, a pre-proposal meeting was held to provide information to prospective 
respondents about the proposal process and specific information about what was expected of the 
contractor once the contract was awarded. 
 
In addition, questions were presented orally and in writing, and their answers are included here. 

 
Questions and Answers 

 
1. Is there a description of the Public Art Collection? 

Yes. Inventory attached. 
 

2. Can a proposal be submitted Time and Materials or will only Firm Fixed Price proposals 
be accepted? 
As per Part 1.18.4, Contract Term.  Firm fixed price.  You should make an attempt 
to fix a firm price.  Part of our evaluation of your proposal will be based upon a 
realistic projection of costs. 

 
3. How often are regularly scheduled Staff meetings?  Is there an established schedule? 

A minimum of 1-1.5 hour meeting with staff weekly.  We have been holding 
Wednesday staff meetings (9-10:30am). 

 
4. What is the size of the “staff” that we would be working and communicating with? 

Three full time staff:   Catherine Gore, Program Manager 
      Dan Fuller, Project Coordinator/Collections Manager 
      Makita Hill, Project Coordinator, UETF Program Manager 
 One or two contracted temporary non-city staff, depending on projects. 
 City staff you might be dealing with includes CIP Fiscal Staff (invoicing/contracts), 

Parks and Recreation personnel, specific department representatives, miscellaneous 
City employees. 

 
5. Approximately how many contracts and budgets are referenced in “Fiscal Management 

of Conservation Contracts”? 
That would depend on how many contracts are created to perform the required 
Conservation Oversight Management. 

 
6. Approximately how many contracts would require drafting of the scope? 

That would depend on how many contracts are created to perform the required 
Conservation Oversight Management. 

 
7. Approximately how many contracts per year will require “contract work oversight” 

(physical presence on the “Job”)? 
Varies.  It will be expected that the contractor be responsible for all conservation 
oversight projects.  (It is estimated that someone will need to be on the job site 75% 
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of the time to insure that the work is acceptable executed.)  Those jobs not 
subcontracted will be the responsibility of the Conservation Oversight 
vendor/contractor.  The Program Staff expects that the vendor/contractor will 
handle MOST maintenance and conservation issues without protracted guidance 
from Staff. 

 
8. As a contractor, what process is involved with insuring “timely payment of additional 

services”? 
The invoice needs to accurately list the billable items, and needs to include the 
department name, invoice number, and the contract number.  Also, payment terms 
should be stated, ie., Net 30.  The City’s normal payment terms are Net 30, however, 
if an early payment discount is offered, the early payment date needs to be specified. 
 (Example:  Instead of 1% 20, Net 30, say 1% discount if the payment is received by 
October 11, 2007.)  The mailing address for Accounts Payable is: 
  City Of Albuquerque 
  One Civic Plaza – 8th Floor 

Attn: Accounts Payable 
  P.O. Box 1985 
  Albuquerque, NM 87103 

 
9. Field collection management - In order to bid accurately, an inventory of the number of 

works in the Public Art Collection, with approximate sizes and materials, will be 
required. 
Inventory attached.  

 
10. Will a budget be provided to work from for the “Monthly Schedule of Tasks”? 

The overall budget was formulated to include regular, routine maintenance 
(Monthly Schedule of Tasks). 

 
11. Create visual and photographic inventory - In order to bid accurately, an inventory of the 

number of works in the Public Art Collection, with approximate sizes and materials, will 
be required. 
Inventory attached.  

 
12. Approximately how many “Proposed Art Projects” will we be required to review per 

year? 
Varies.  An average year will see the recommendation of between 8 and 12 new 
installations of Public Art.  Some years will vary, depending on the available 
budgets and complexity of projects. 
 

13. Please confirm if the “Graffiti Clean Up Responses” is for Public Works Collection only 
or if it includes other structures owned by the City Of Albuquerque. 
Public Art collection works, adjacent, built environments directly related to the art. 
(ie. - If there is a wall relief that needs to have graffiti removed from it, we would 
like to address the immediate, surrounding support and clean that up as well.) 
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14. Create an assessment of needs - In order to bid accurately, an inventory of the number of 
works in the Public Art Collection, with approximate sizes and materials, will be 
required. 
Inventory attached.  

 
15. Fundamental service responsibilities - In order to bid accurately, an inventory of the 

number of works in the Public Art Collection, with approximate sizes and materials, will 
be required. 
Inventory attached. 

 
16/17. Is it required for this “Office Space” to be in Albuquerque?  Will the City Of 

Albuquerque require others (third party) to access the required “storage areas”?  Or is this 
space solely for work performed and contracted under us? 
Office space to perform basic record keeping functions and pertinent 
material/conservation records need not be in Albuquerque.  However, a shop space 
where artworks in repair, and storage for materials used in regular maintenance 
and conservation, should be within reasonable proximity to the site of the artworks. 
 The Collections Manager should be able to access the storage facility to drop off 
works, pick up materials, equipment, and supplies. 
 

18/20. What are the requirements for the mandatory “Computer Hardware and Software”?  What 
are the digital photo requirements? 
The Art Program will design a form that addresses condition reports, task 
proposals, and ‘authorization to proceed’ forms.  The City uses a PC platform and 
File Maker Pro 7.5 and 8.  You should have wireless access for field work and the 
digital camera should be ready to send clear images with e-mails.  A scanner to 
digitize bids, quotes, and paper reports would be helpful, but the scanner at our 
offices will be available for your use. 
 

19. Are the “database systems” already working or will we be required to develop? 
The databases are newly reconfigured.  Ongoing data entry will be part of the 
record keeping requirements.  Contractor (COM) will not be required to do all of 
the data entry, but rather supply information from the works/field to enter by our 
staff. 
 

21. Are there a required number of educational offerings per year that the City would like to 
undertake?  And/or is there a budget for these offerings? 
Professional educational updates and related education in conservation techniques 
will be the responsibility of the contractor (COM).  There is not a separate budget 
for these. 

 
22. Does the City have a best and final process? 

Best and final is not a normal course of every RFP process.  It is used in certain 
circumstances and at the City’s discretion to address certain issues. 

 
23. What is the process for change orders? 
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That is part of the contract negotiation and is determined by the City and the 
contractor upon mutual agreement and industry standards.    
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